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Attachments: 
 
 1. January 10, 2013 letter from PG&E 
 2. February 7, 2013 letter from PG&E with attachments (PG&E’s 28-page Western Area 

Technical Memorandum of January 28, 2013 is available from the Water Board’s public webpage 
at http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/lahontan/water_issues/projects/pge/index.shtml under the 
heading, “Other Documents”) 

 
 



 
 
 

Pacific Gas and 
Electric Company 
 

Jeffrey McCarthy 
Remediation Site Manager - Hinkley 
Chromium Remediation 

 

22999 Community Blvd 
Hinkley, CA 92347 
 
Phone:  (760) 253-7822 
Mobile:  (760) 954-3272 
Fax: (760) 253-7822 
JDM9@pge.com 

 
 
January 10, 2013 
 
 
Ms. Patty Kouyoumdjian 
Executive Officer 
California Regional Water Control Board, Lahontan Region 
2401 Lake Tahoe Blvd. 
South Lake Tahoe, CA 96150 
 
 
Re: Whole House Replacement Water (WHRW) Monitoring 
 Proposal to Amend Reverse Osmosis and Ion Exchange Leachate Monitoring 
 
 
Dear Ms. Kouyoumdjian: 
 
Pacific Gas and Electric Company (PG&E) has installed WHRW ion exchange (IX) and undersink 
reverse osmosis (RO) systems at two eligible properties and has been monitoring these systems 
according to the monitoring plan included in the June 2012 Replacement Water Supply Feasibility Study 
Update (“Feasibility Study”).  Based on our experience to date, there are two changes to the monitoring 
plan we feel would be beneficial for the overall effectiveness of the program and to minimize the 
inconvenience to Hinkley residents.  The proposed modifications are detailed below.   
 
Ion Exchange Resin Leachates Monitoring 
 
The monitoring plan includes sampling at specified locations for ion exchange resin leachate 
constituents during startup of the WHRW system. The objective of IX resin leachate monitoring is to 
ensure that the vendor’s resin does not leach constituents in excess of State or Federal maximum 
contaminant levels (MCLs).  The current monitoring plan requires testing for resin leachates at three 
different locations in the WHRW system during the system start-up.  There is no requirement to perform 
subsequent resin leachate testing.   
 
PG&E procures National Sanitation Foundation (NSF) certified IX resin in batches to fill multiple 
WHRW IX treatment vessels used throughout the program.  Each resin shipment is accompanied by a 
vendor Certificate of Analysis that includes the batch identification number, resin capacity, moisture 
content, and resin integrity.  Since resin leachates will be specific to each batch, PG&E proposes that 
leachates be monitored on a batch basis, rather than at each home during startup.  PG&E will work with 
the resin supplier to establish protocols for collecting representative samples and performing laboratory 
analysis consistent with the leachate constituents identified in the Feasibility Study monitoring plan.  
The batch test results will be included in future quarterly WHRW Monitoring Reports required under 
CAO RGV-2011-0005A1, Paragraph 2.g. 
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The benefits associated with monitoring leachates on a batch basis include: 
 

• Resin would be tested throughout the program life rather than only at system start-up.  While 
start-up testing provides confidence that the resin does not contain leachates above MCLs, 
testing each batch would provide greater certainty that all the resin used in subsequent media 
replacements would also comply with water quality standards. 

 
• Start-up and sampling of the WHRW systems and inconveniences to Hinkley residents would be 

significantly reduced.  The current monitoring plan calls for obtaining IX resin leachate samples 
downstream of both IX vessels and at each under-sink RO unit in the home.  Monitoring for 
resin leachates takes between one and two hours per location.  With up to five RO units installed 
in the homes, leachate monitoring can add up to 5 hours to the start-up process in each home.   

 
Under-sink RO Unit Monitoring 
 
As representatives of PG&E discussed with the Water Board on December 18, 2012, monitoring of the 
internal RO units at each installed location has proven to be a significant inconvenience to Hinkley 
residents.  PG&E has made every effort to accommodate the residents preferred schedule for sampling 
the undersink RO units, including sampling after-hours and on weekends.  One resident has already 
requested that no further sampling of the RO units be conducted.  The monitoring plan proposed in 
PG&E’s Feasibility Study called for bi-weekly monitoring of hexavalent chromium, total chromium and 
parameters that exceed 90 percent of State and Federal MCLs/SMCLs for the first six months and then 
quarterly for the remainder of the program. Depending on the number of RO systems installed in each 
home and the water quality parameters that need to be monitored, the time to collect under-sink RO 
samples for each home may vary between 30 and 60 minutes per unit.   Per the current monitoring plan, 
the sampling technicians could be spending between 1 to 3 hours inside the homes on bi-weekly basis 
for the first six months.  
 
PG&E is proposing the following changes to the monitoring plan to reduce inconvenience to 
homeowners: 
 

• Monitor each under-sink RO unit during start-up for hexavalent chromium, total chromium and 
other water quality constituents of concern (above 90 percent of State and Federal MCLs/SMCLs 
as described in the Monitoring Plan).  Sampling during start-up will confirm that the units are 
operating in accordance with their State certification before they are turned over to the residents. 

• Monitor the under-sink RO unit in the kitchen every six months for hexavalent chromium, total 
chromium and water quality constituents of concern (above 90 percent of State and Federal 
MCLs/SMCLs as described in the Monitoring Plan).  At the time of sample collection, PG&E 
will also service all of the units, replacing necessary cartridges per the manufacturer 
recommendations in an effort to minimize further disturbances to Hinkley residents. 
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In addition to minimizing the inconvenience to residents, justification for streamlining under-sink RO 
monitoring includes: 
 

• Under-sink RO Systems are State Certified – The under-sink RO systems are certified by the 
State of California. The certification tests the system’s ability to treat water containing elevated 
concentrations of constituents commonly found in drinking water.  One of the intents of the State 
certification program is to provide residents reasonable assurance that a water treatment device 
can perform as indicated without burdening the homeowner with regular sampling.  As part of 
State requirements, systems must be equipped with shutdown capabilities after a set amount of 
water has been processed.  The indicator light and shutdown measures allow delivery of water of 
consistent quality that meets the drinking water standards for which the unit was certified.   
 

• Servicing the Under-sink RO Units in the Future – Based upon concerns expressed to date, 
PG&E is concerned frequent monitoring during the first six months may jeopardize the 
relationship between PG&E and the resident.  As water is consumed from these units, they will 
require periodic maintenance in order to maintain State certification.  As a proactive measure, 
PG&E wishes to maintain a relationship with residents so units can be serviced in the future to 
ensure they are continually performing in accordance with State requirements and manufacturer 
claims. 
 

• Consistent Water Quality of Under-sink RO Systems – For the recent installations, the 
individual under-sink RO systems were sampled and monitored to demonstrate consistent 
performance of the RO systems.  To date, all under-sink RO units have met State and Federal 
MCLs/SMCLs for respective constituents of concern.  Monitoring of the installed systems has 
shown infrequent and inconsistent detections of low concentrations of hexavalent chromium 
above 0.06 µg/L.  As reported to the Water Board, PG&E will continue to investigate the 
potential sources of hexavalent chromium utilizing various bench and full scale testing protocols 
at a PG&E owned, unoccupied residence and undertake appropriate measures to further reduce 
any detections.   

 
PG&E would appreciate receiving the Water Board’s approval of PG&E’s proposal to modify the 
monitoring program for resin leachates and under-sink RO units by January 24, 2013 so that we can 
incorporate the changes in the next group of WHRW units scheduled for startup in late January 2013.  
Thank you for your consideration.   Please do not hesitate to contact me at 760-253-7822 if you have 
any questions regarding this report, or if you need additional information. 
 
I hereby certify that I have examined this report, and based on my examination and my inquiries of those 
individuals who assisted in the preparation of the report, I believe the report to be true, complete and 
accurate. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
Jeff McCarthy 


























